
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. TUESDAY FEBRUARY 18, 

2020 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 

Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 

Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com  

Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com  

Council Member Tom Dean tdiowa@hotmail.com  

Council Member Jerry Sexton jerrysextonwb@gmail.com  

City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 

City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick leslie@westbranchiowa.org 
 

Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are 

public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may therefore be 

subject to public disclosure.    
AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies  
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations 
 

None 

 

E. Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments 

may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  
 
 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any 

item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting February 4, 2020. 
 
2. Motion to Approve a Class C Native Wine, with Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales 

Liquor License Renewal for Brick Arch Winery, Located at 116 W. Main Street. 
 
3. Motion to Approve a Class C Liquor License, Class B Native Wine, with Outdoor 

Service and Sunday Sales for Eldr LLC., 2 Ember Lane, West Branch. 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

 
4. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 
G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda  

1. Second Reading of Ordinance 772 Approving the Rezoning of a Certain Parcel of 
Property Located North of Interstate 80 and East of Parkside Drive from B-2 
Business District to a PUD – Planned Unit Development District (Parkside BP 
property).  

2. Discussion Item: To Consider a New Golf Cart Ordinance.     
3. Discussion Item: To Consider Amending Water Rate Discounts for Large Water 

users.   
4. Resolution 1877 – A Resolution Accepting the City Administrator’s Recommended 

Budget and Ordering A Notice of Hearing for March 2, 2020 to Adopt the FY 2020-
2021 Budget.  

 
5. Resolution 1876 – Approve Submitting the Iowa Department of Transportation 

Agreement / Resolution Sign Replacement Program Application for Cities & 
Counties (Grant). 
 

H. Reports  
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. City Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Closed Session (Take vote to have Closed Session Meeting) 

In accordance with State Code Section 21.5(j), Closed Session Exemptions: To discuss 

the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be 

reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for 

that property or reduce the price the governmental body would receive for that 

property.  In order to hold a closed session only by affirmative public vote by two-

thirds of the members of the body or all of the members present at the meeting. 

 

K. Adjournment Regular Meeting 

 

L. Open Closed Session Meeting – In  accordance with State Code Section 21.5(j), 

Closed Session Exemptions: To discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate 

only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the 

governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the 

governmental body would receive for that property 

 

M. Adjournment Closed Session Meeting 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.)  

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council           February 4, 2020  

Council Chambers     Regular Meeting    7:00 p.m.                                                                                                      
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Roll call: Council 

members: Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler, Jerry Sexton and Tom Dean were present.  Laughlin 

welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy Clerk Leslie 

Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Police Chief Mike Horihan, Fire Chief Kevin Stoolman, Public Works 

Director Matt Goodale, Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell and Library Director Nick Shimmin. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER AND PRESENTATIONS 

Introduction to the New Cedar County Emergency Management Director, Jodi Freet. This position provides 

support and assistance in the areas of administration, operations, training and related technical issues for the 

Cedar County Emergency Management Agency and 911 Service Board activities. Freet introduced herself and 

stated the she recently accepted the position of EMA Director which she will take over on April 1, 2020.  Freet, 

who has a finance background has been working as the Office Coordinator at Cedar County EMA for the past two 

years says she is excited for her new position and working with the cities in Cedar County.   
 
Planned Unit Development – Brief Definition, Questions and Answers with John Fuller, Chairperson for the 

Planning and Zoning Commission.  A planned unit development (PUD) is a type of land / 

building development and also a regulatory process. As a building development, it is a designed grouping of both 

varied and compatible land uses, such as housing, recreation, commercial centers, and industrial parks, all 

within one contained development or subdivision.  Fuller explained the purpose of a Planned Unit Development, a 

new zoning code adopted by the City Council in 2018 and said this type of zoning allows flexibility for the 

developer and allows the City to have authority regarding the overall planning of large developments.  Fuller 

stated that a request for a zoning change for the Parkside BP property from B-2 Business District to a Planned 

Unit Development was unanimously approved at their January 28th Planning & Zoning Commission.  Fuller said 

the commission recommends the Council approve the rezoning request. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comment. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting January 21, 2020. 

Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Budget Meeting January 27, 2020. 

Motion to Approve LL Pelling Co. Seal Coat Unit Pricing. 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
  
EXPENDITURES     1/21/2020  
  

ALTORFER INC     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE     475.62  
CAJ ENTERPRISES INC     SAND HAULING      219.66  
CROELL, INC.     SAND       1,367.60  
ECONO SIGNS LLC     ECONO SIGNS LLC      909.58  
HAWKINS INC     CHEMICALS - AZONE      567.50  
HI-LINE ELECTRIC COMPANY INC    SUPPLIES       212.62  
IOWA ONE CALL     UTILITY LOCATION SERVICE     54.00  
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL    SUPPLIES, CLOTHING ALLOWANCE    517.88  
JULIA HIME     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICE     150.00  
KIESLER POLICE SUPPLY, INC    SUPPLIES       244.00  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS     1,287.94  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC    LANCASTER & ORANGE - STORM WATER REPAIR   2,000.00  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC    NORTHRIDGE DR - SW INTAKE REPAIR    8,542.00  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC    DOWNEY & ORANGE - SW INTAKE REPAIR    5,590.00  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC    BICKFORD ESTATES - STORM WATER REPAIRS   11,186.00  

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

MOORE'S WELDING INC    VEHICLE REPAIR      391.25  
PLAY IT AGAIN SPORTS    RECREATION SUPPLIES     97.15  
QUILL CORP     OFFICE SUPPLIES      379.56  
ROBERT'S TOWING & RECOVERY    TOWING SERVICE      175.00  
SECRETARY OF STATE     NOTARY RENEWAL FEE     30.00  
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS    CHEMICALS      244.00  
UNIFORM DEN INC.     UNIFORMS      182.82  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    319 UTILITY RELOCATE & I-80 WIDENING    1,740.00  
 
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    CHANNEL WIDENING- FLOOD IMPROVEMENTS   528.00  
 
TOTAL             37,092.18  
 
PAYROLL      1/24/2020       56,436.94  
 
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
 
DREAMHOST     COMPTER NETWORK SECURITY     72.00  
MEDIACOM     CABLE SERVICE      41.90  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER   REPLENISH POSTAGE METER     500.00  
UPS      SHIPPING       47.36  
VERIZON WIRLESS     WIRELESS SERVICE      801.53  
 
TOTAL             1,462.79  
 
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES           94,991.91  
 
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND    22,923.54  
022   CIVIC CENTER    96.03  
031   LIBRARY    6,169.69  
110   ROAD USE TAX    8,696.12  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   11,636.04  
319   RELOCATING WATER & SEWER  1,740.00  
600   WATER FUND    8,437.59  
610   SEWER FUND    7,446.90  
740   STORM WATER UTILITY   27,846.00  
 
GRAND TOTAL    94,991.91 

 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Dean approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Goodweiler, 

Dean, Stoolman, Miller, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.   Motion carried.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA  
Public Hearing: Regarding Rezoning a Certain Parcel of Property Located North of Interstate 80 and East of 

Parkside Drive from B-2 Business District to a PUD – Planned Unit Development District (Parkside BP 

property).   

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:13 p.m.  Ron Amelon, MMS Consultants, representing his client 

Advantage Development Inc., explained the reasoning for the rezoning request.  Amelon said the existing 

building on the property (gas station) does not have the required set-backs for the proposed building improvement 

the developer is wanting to make.  He further explained that rezoning the property to a PUD gives flexibility to 

make the requested improvements and allows them to take advantage of handling the storm water management in 

a more efficient manner.  (Fuller, on behalf of the Planning & Zoning Commission spoke earlier in favor of the 

rezoning request.)  There were no other public comments.  Laughlin closed the public hearing at 7:15 p.m. 
 
First Reading of Ordinance 772 Approving the Rezoning of a Certain Parcel of Property Located North of 

Interstate 80 and East of Parkside Drive from B-2 Business District to a PUD – Planned Unit Development 

District (Parkside BP property). /Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Sexton to approve the 1st reading of Ordinance 772.  AYES:   

Goodweiler, Sexton, Miler, Stoolman, Dean.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 



 

 

  
Public Hearing: Considering the Maximum Tax Dollars from Certain Levies That Can Be Certified in the City’s 

Proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:18 p.m.  There were no public comments.  Laughlin closed the public 

hearing at 7:19 p.m. 
  
Resolution 1875 – Approving the Maximum Tax Dollars from Certain Levies for the City’s Proposed Fiscal Year 

2020 – 2021 Budget. / Move to action. 

Motion by Dean, second by Sexton to approve Resolution 1875.  AYES:  Dean, Sexton, Miller, Stoolman, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
  
Motion to approve revenue estimates to be incorporated in the City Administrator’s recommended budget. / Move 

to action. 

Jones reminded the Council that the estimated revenues presented at the January 27, 2020 Budget Workshop will 

be the numbers used for the FY21 budget and reiterated that they are estimates, not actuals.  Jones said that staff 

worked with department heads to determine these estimates and working towards a ‘growth paying for growth’ 

philosophy.  Miller questioned when the recent ballot measure adopting a Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 

would go into effect.  Jones replied that this fund (line item 41 on form 16-142) would have dollar amounts in it 

as debt is paid down. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Dean.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Dean, Stoolman, Miller, Sexton.  NAYS:  

None.      Motion carried. 
     
Motion to approve the salary plan intended to be incorporated into the City Administrator’s recommended budget. 

/ Move to action. 

Jones recapped the salary plan considered by the Council at the January 27, 2020 Budget Workshop and said the 

following would be included in the FY21 budget; one additional full-time Public Works employee, one additional 

full-time police officer, health and life insurance package for the West Branch Fire Chief, 1.6 percent cost of 

living adjustment for city employees, disability benefits and increased life insurance and retirement payout of 

unused vacation and sick leave for two retiring city employees.  Jones said with these items, the tax rate remains 

at the current $13.09 (no tax increase). 

Motion by Dean, second by Goodweiler.  AYES:  Dean, Goodweiler, Sexton, Stoolman, Miller.  NAYS: 

None. Motion carried. 
 
Motion to approve the Non-Salary Department Expenditures (City goals that will be funded in the proposed 

budget). / Move to action. 

Jones recapped several top Council priorities (projects) that have been budgeted for FY21 including:  downstream 

widening at Beranek Park, replacement of one block of a sealcoat street on the east side of town, street connection 

to Greenview subdivision, planning for the reconstruction of Cedar-Johnson Road, water main improvements on 

the east side and additional funding for Christmas Past.  Although the Council and staff disagreed on the term 

‘funded’ versus ‘budgeted’ it was determined that the Council’s priorities and goals would be funded and 

completed within the FY21 budget. 

Motion by Sexton, second by Miller.  AYES:  Sexton, Miller, Stoolman, Dean, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  

Motion carried. 
 
Discussion:  Policy on Waivers for Sewer Service Charges.  

Brick presented information obtained from other surrounding cities on their policy for giving sewer credit to 

residents who knowingly use water for outside needs (watering sod, gardening, filling swimming pools, etc.).  

Brick said the cities questioned do not give credit for these types of activities but do allow for issues out of their 

control.  Brick suggest the city adopt a similar policy so that going forward resident requests can be handled in a 

consistent manner.  The council agreed to review the information Brick provided and give feedback for creating a 

policy. 
 



 

 

Discussion:  Waiving Hoover’s Hometown Days vendor fees for the brick and mortar businesses along Main 

Street.  

Russell explained that in an effort to encourage more downtown businesses to participate in Hoover’s Hometown 

Days, suggested that the vendor fee of $25 be waived for them.  Russell said this waiver does not equate to a large 

amount of revenue.  Russell said these fees were originally established when RAGBRAI came through West 

Branch but may need to be reviewed.  The Council agreed and felt that the fee schedule should be reviewed. 
 
Resolution 1872 – Approving a Fireworks Agreement with J&M Displays for Hoover’s Hometown Days 2020. / 

Move to action. 

Sexton said he had given this subject some thought and asked the Council what they would do with $25,000 if 

they didn’t use it for fireworks.  Would they use it for a street project?  Something else?  Dean said he has talked 

with some local businesses and they see an increase in sales during the event, including the grocery store.  Dean 

said that most businesses during the event have extra sales which in turn equate a local option sales tax boost.  

Dean said many family and class reunions are planned around Hoover’s Hometown Days and that the fireworks 

are a big draw for the event.  Laughlin commented that ‘fireworks for the event are tradition’.  Stoolman voiced 

her concern and said she remembered when the Hoover Foundation chipped in toward the event and felt that they 

should do their part since they are a beneficiary of the event as well.  National Park Superintendent Swisher 

commented that the Hoover Site is one of four parks in the U.S. that allow fireworks.  Swisher said that if 

fireworks were discontinued for a time, it may be challenging to get a permit to get them back in the Park.  Miller 

finished by saying that with a six million dollar annual budget, he felt the City could ‘swing’ this expenditure. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1872.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Miller, Sexton, 

Dean.  NAYS:  Stoolman. Motion carried. 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported that data is continually being collected on the Baldridge project.  He said enzymes are being 

introduced upstream where they can work in warmer temperatures to see if that provides a positive impact.  Jones 

said the City is still waiting on the final bill for the College Bridge project to determine how the final balance will 

be paid or if any borrowing would be needed.  He also reported that he had reached out to the Roy Carver Trust in 

hopes of a grant to help fund the splash pad project.  Jones gave a brief update on the trash and recycling RFP 

which are due on March 2nd, nuisance letters which are expected to go out later this week and an update on the 

Downtown East Redevelopment site. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Absent. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  

None. 
 
COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Stoolman publicly thanked Emilie Walsh for reaching out to the community for assistance in writing the grant for 

the Volkswagen Grant on the cities behalf. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Dean, second by Sexton.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting adjourned 

at 8:43 p.m.  

        

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Class C Native Wine, with Outdoor Service and 

Sunday Sales Liquor License Renewal for Brick Arch Winery, 116 W. 

Main Street. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 11, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 
 
Liquor license renewal effective March 1, 2020 through February 28, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Class C Liquor License, Class B Native Wine, with 

Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales for Eldr LLC., 2 Ember Lane, West 

Branch. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 11, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 
 
Little Lights Weddings & Events recently had a change in their provider who holds a liquor 

license for the event center.  Because of this, Erin Morrison-Vincent has created an LLC to hold 

the liquor license for the business known as Little Lights Weddings and Events, 2 Ember Lane, 

West Branch. 

 

The requested license is for twelve months with an effective date of February 1, 2020.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 18, 2020 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  February 12, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 4 



EXPENDITURES 2/18/2020

ALLIANT ENERGY ALLIANT ENERGY 12,767.50             

ALTORFER INC REPAIR PARTS 473.05                   

AMAZON BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 904.43                   

AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 208.00                   

AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. PAYMENT ON TASERS 1,056.00                

BAKER & TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 746.33                   

BARNHART'S CUSTOM SERVICES CROELL SITE CONCRETE DEMOLITION 49,663.75             

BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY SUPPLIES 315.74                   

BIG COUNTRY SEEDS INC ICE MELT 401.80                   

BMI MUSIC LICENSE 364.00                   

BROWN'S WEST BRANCH VEHICLE REPAIR 339.64                   

CAJ ENTERPRISES INC SAND HAULING 498.33                   

CEDAR COUNTY COOPERATIVE VEHICLE FUEL 1,576.31                

CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER RECORDING FEES 7.00                       

D&R PEST CONTROL PEST CONTROL SERVICE 70.00                     

EBSCO INDUSTRIES, INC SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL 627.90                   

F&B COMMUNICATIONS INC TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 262.99                   

FRED'S FEED & SUPPLY LLC SUPPLIES 46.40                     

HI-LINE ELECTRIC COMPANY INC SUPPLIES 80.72                     

IOWA MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION DUES BRICK 20-21 150.00                   
IOWA POLICE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION HORIHAN DUES-TO 12-31-2020 125.00                   

IOWA SECTION AWWA TRAINING 120.00                   

JJ NICHTING COMPANY REPAIR PARTS 130.46                   

JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC. RECYCLING - JANUARY, 2020 4,013.75                

LINN COUNTY R.E.C. STREET LIGHTS 149.00                   

MENARDS SHELVING UNITS & SUPPLIES 392.52                   

MIDWEST FRAME & AXLE VEHICLE REPAIR 863.64                   

MIDWEST TAPE LLC SUPPLIES 14.99                     

MISCELLANEOUS VENDOR B WILDEMUTH:MAILBOX REIMBURSEMENT 50.00                     

MOORE'S WELDING INC REPAIR PARTS 750.00                   

OASIS ELECTRIC LLC LIGHTS-COLLEGE ST BRIDGE 1,691.71                

OLSON, KEVIN D LEGAL SERVICES- FEBRUARY, 2020 1,500.00                



PYRAMID SERVICES INC. SUPPLIES 175.92                   

QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC LAB ANALYSIS 913.00                   

QUILL CORP OFFICE SUPPLIES 137.21                   

STATE HYGIENIC LAB LAB ANALYSIS 26.00                     

STATE LIBRARY OF IOWA E-BOOK SUBSCRIPTION FEES 61.00                     

THE BOOK FARM INC BOOKS 658.50                   

US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE COPIER LEASE - LIBRARY 106.25                   

WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC MAINT, PROGRAM SUPPLIES, DVDS 254.68                   

WEST BRANCH TIMES SUBSCRIPTION 892.90                   

WEX BANK VEHICLE FUEL 1,442.86                

TOTAL  85,029.28             

PAYROLL  2/7/2020 45,696.57             

PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS

HI-LINE ELECTRIC COMPANY SUPPLIES 208.37                   

UPS SHIPPING 21.31                     

BROWN'S WEST BRANCH 2020 RAM 1500 24,668.51             

PARKSIDE SERVICE VEHICLE REPAIRS 2,452.24                

UPS SHIPPING 23.68                     

TOTAL 27,374.11             

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 158,099.96           

FUND TOTALS

001   GENERAL FUND 59,682.86

022   CIVIC CENTER 749.73

031   LIBRARY 9,807.80

110   ROAD USE TAX 12,765.35

112   TRUST AND AGENCY 5,055.50

308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY 279.76



310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE 1,691.71

312   DOWNTOWN EAST REDEVELPOPMENT 49,663.75

600   WATER FUND 9,473.33

610   SEWER FUND 8,930.17

GRAND TOTAL 158,099.96



FUND JANUARY

001  GENERAL FUND 19,951.31    

022  CIVIC CENTER 204.50          

031  LIBRARY 188.92          

036  TORT LIABILITY 35,479.58    

110  ROAD USE TAX 31,570.21    

112  TRUST & AGENCY (34,234.97)   

119  EMERGENCY TAX FUND 149.05          

121  LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 18,721.41    

125  TIF 4,087.16       

226  DEBT SERVICE 1,491.81       

500  CEMETERY PERPETUAL FUND 0.10               

502  KROUTH INTEREST FUND 0.03               

600  WATER FUND 42,192.80    

610  SEWER FUND 35,850.02    

740  STORM WATER UTILITY 5,291.75       

TOTAL 160,943.68  

 REVENUE-FISCAL YEAR 2020











PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS 2/13/2020

BUSINESS RADIO SALES & SERVICE PAGERS AND CHARGERS 1,554.00                

CJ COOPER AND ASSOCIATES DRUG TEST 133.45                   

CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIES WATER SOFTENER SERVICE 23.20                     

FIRE SERVICE TRAINING BUREAU TRAINING 125.00                   

HOSPERS & BROTHER PRINTERS ANNUAL REPORTS 313.20                   

LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC SERVICE CALL 235.40                   

MED COMPASS FIRE DEPARTMENT PHYSICALS 4,515.00                

WEST BRANCH FIREFIGHTERS FOUNDATION SOFTWARE LICENSES 220.96                   

TOTAL  7,120.21               

FUND TOTALS

001   GENERAL FUND 2,605.21

112   TRUST AND AGENCY 4,515.00

TOTAL 7,120.21



 

 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 4, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of Ordinance 772 Approving the Rezoning of a Certain 

Parcel of Property Located North of Interstate 80 and East of Parkside 

Drive from B-2 Business District to a PUD – Planned Unit Development 

District (Parkside BP property). 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  January 29, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 

  

The Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the same matter and approved the 

rezoning request at their January 28, 2020 meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve First Reading of Ordinance 772 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, 110 N. Poplar Street, P.O. Box 218, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319)643-5888 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 772 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF 

AND ADJACENT TO INTERSTATE 80 AND EAST OF PARKSIDE DRIVE FROM B-2 BUSINESS 

DISTRICT TO PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Owner of the property described below has petitioned the City of West Branch for a 

zoning district amendment for property located north of and adjacent to Interstate 80 and east of Parkside 

Drive, said parcel being legally described as:   

 

Commencing at a point of reference at the Northwest corner of Section 8, Township 79 North, Range 4 

West of the 5th Principal Meridian, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, thence South 1,638.0 feet along the 

West line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8 (the West line of the Northwest quarter of said Section 

8 is assumed to bear true North and South) to the Southwest corner of Lot A of the Northwest Quarter of 

said Section 8, according to the plat of survey made for James Cook, said survey being filed in Surveyor’s 

Record 3, Page 265, in the office of the Auditor of Cedar County, Iowa, thence South 89°37’ East 60 feet, 

more or less, along the South line of said Lot A to a point of intersection with the easterly right-of-way line 

of the public highway and point of beginning of tract herein described; thence continuing South 89°37’ East 

176.0 feet along the Southerly line of said Lot A to a point; thence South 0°23’ West 200.00 feet to a point; 

thence North 89°37’ West 140.84 feet to a point of intersection with the easterly right-of-way line of the 

public highway; thence North 11°59’ West 18.54 feet along the Easterly right-of-way line of said highway 

to a point; thence North 9°21’ West 184.55 feet along the easterly right-of-way line of said public highway 

(whose right-of-way is described in Iowa State Land Office Correction Patent No. 603, recorded in Volume 

5, Page 158, Records of the Iowa Secretary of State, Des Moines, Iowa) to the point of beginning, and 

except the North 40 feet of tract above described; and subject to a perpetual easement for foot and motor 

vehicle travel, in common with others, over and across the westerly 30 feet of tract above described.  

AND  

Commencing as a point of reference at the Northwest corner of Section 8, Township 79 North, Range 4 

West of the 5th Principal Meridian, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; thence South 1638.0 feet along the 

West line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8 (the West line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 

8 is assumed to bear true North and South) to the Southwest corner of Lot A of the Northwest Quarter of 

said Section 8 according to plat of survey made for James Cook, said survey being filed in Surveyor’s 

Record 3, page 265 in the office of the Auditor of Cedar County, Iowa; thence South 89°37’ East 60 feet, 

more or less, along the South line of said Lot A to a point of intersection with the Easterly right-of-way line 



 

 

of the public highway; thence South 9°21’ East 184.55 feet along the Easterly right-of-way line of said 

public highway to a point; thence South 11°59’ East 18.54 feet to point of beginning of tract herein 

described; thence South 89°37’ East 140.84 feet to a point; thence South 0°23’ West 174.42 feet to a point 

of intersection with the Northerly right-of-way line of Interstate Highway #80; thence North 68°03’ West 

120.79 feet along the Northeasterly right-of-way line of said highway to a point; thence North 11°59’ West 

133.11 feet along the Northeasterly right-of-way line of said highway to the point of beginning.  (Right-of-

way of the subject highway is described in Iowa State Land Office Correction Patent No. 603, recorded in 

Volume 5, Page 158, records of the Iowa Secretary of State, Des Moines, Iowa) (the “Parcel”); and 

WHEREAS, the Owner has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in a PUD – Planned Unit 

Development District in place of an B-2 Business District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the City Council 

approve said rezoning request; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa: 

 

Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to show the Parcel being 

located in a PUD – Planned Unit Development District in place of B-2 Business District. 

  

Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication as by law provided. 

 

Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 

repealed. 

 

Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part, 

section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this 2nd day of March, 2020. 

 

 Read First Time: February 4, 2020  

 Read Second Time: February 18, 2020 

 Read Third Time: March 2, 2020 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: To Consider a New Golf Cart Ordinance. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  February 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
The purpose of this discussion item is to consider having policy aimed to protect the health, safety 

and well-being of the citizens of the City of West Branch by prohibiting the unsafe use of golf 

carts on the public roads in the City, there has been several complaint regarding the use of Golf 

Carts.  Particularly regarding operations by under aged children which may endanger the safety 

of persons driving, bicycling or walking on the roads or the safety of motorists, cyclists, 

pedestrians, or other children passengers on the Golf Cart.    

 

This item was brought to the City’s attention by a citizen driven proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seeking Direction and Feedback by City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

For Discussion Purposes Only 



 

 

 
 

For Discussion Purposes Only 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Discussion Purposes Only 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: To Consider Amending the Water Rate Discounts for 

Large Water User. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Nick Goodweiler, Councilperson / Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  February 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
Revenue sufficiency is the primary financial objective for most water utilities that operate as 

enterprises. They must be financially self-sufficient, recovering not only the cost of daily 

operations but also funding capital improvements to fulfill their central public health mission. 

They strive to design rate structures and set rate levels in a manner that equitably charges a 

customer based on the cost-of-service. However, rates and rate structures can go well beyond 

these main objectives and provide an excellent avenue to help a utility achieve some of its goals 

and policies. 
 
This discussion item is intended to weigh the importance and balance of: 

 Promotion of Conservation 

 Affordability 

 Economic Development, and 

 Short-term Revenue Stability: 
 
Striking a balance in setting rates can be challenging, utilities must prioritize and balance 

objectives that are sometime complementary and sometimes contradictory.  A utility must decide 

the objectives that take precedence and design a rate structure and level that reflect those 

priorities.  
 
(For example) 

Question:  Should residential users be incentivized to conserve with lower bills (the less they use 

the less they are billed), when industrial / large commercial users are capped at certain levels 

(providing an incentive to use beyond billing ceiling because is viewed as free once the volume 

exceeds the ceiling billed.    
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seeking Direction and Feedback by City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

An excerpt from a February 2014 

report.  Researchers: Mary Tiger, 

Jeff Hughes and Shadi Eskaf are 

accredited with the work. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 18, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: RESOLUTION 1877 – A Resolution Accepting the City Administrator’s 

Recommended Budget and Ordering A Notice of Hearing for March 2, 

2020 to Adopt the FY 2020-2021 Budget. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 13, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
Staff has prepared a proposed operating and capital budget for the 2020-2021 fiscal year that 

begins on July 1st.  The proposed budget includes a property tax levy of $13.09428 per $1,000 

of taxable valuation. 

 

The required process for adopting the Annual Budget requires publication of the proposed 

Budget and a Public Hearing to be held prior to its adoption.  The Resolution calls for the Public 

Hearing to be held at a City Council Meeting on March 2nd, 2019.  Adoption of the Budget would 

also take place at that meeting; consistent and well in the advance with the State deadline of 

March 31st. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1877 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C
it

y 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r’

s 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 F

Y 
2

0
-2

1
 B

u
d

ge
t 

(O
p

en
, A

gi
le

, a
n

d
 P

u
rp

o
se

fu
l G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t)

 

Roger Laughlin      Colton Miller 
Mayor        Mayor Pro Tem 
 

Jodee Stoolman      Nick Goodweiler 
Councilperson       Councilperson 
 

Tom Dean       Jerry Sexton 
Councilperson       Councilperson 

Redmond Jones II 
City Administrator 



2 | P a g e    
 

City Council’s Stated Priorities 
 

RESOLUTION 1856 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING GOALS AND OBJECTIVES FOR THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA FOR 2020-2021. 

 WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019; the governing body of the City of West Branch, Iowa went 

through a process of identifying the service priorities for the coming fiscal year 2020 – 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing body discussed concepts of: Required Services, Core Business Choice, 

Quality of Life Services, Community “Add On”, Organization Foundation, Visioning and Teamwork; and 

 WHEREAS, the establishment of Goals and Objectives by the governing body was accomplished, 

and promotes a general direction for staff; and 

 WHEREAS, this direction promotes the overall efficiency and effectiveness of city services, and 

will facilitate the coming budget discussions and City Council Work Sessions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa: 

 Section 1. That the foregoing recitals are incorporated in and made a part of this resolution by 

reference; and 

 Section 2.  That the Goals and Objectives of the City of West Branch for 2020-2021 are hereby 

declared to be and prioritized as follows: 

1. Promote Quality of life including Public Safety, Community Pride Events, Strong Citizen 
Involvement, Park and Recreation, opportunities and investment. 

 Police Body Cameras (9 votes – High Priority) 

 Replacement 1990 (30 year old) Dump Truck with newer used Dump Truck (7 votes – 
High  Priority)  

 Water / Sewer Utility Billing Upgrades – Software Enhancements (5 votes – Moderate / 
High Priority) 

 Christmas Past – Carriage Ride Funding (3 votes – Moderate Priority) 

 Cubby Park Operations – Additional Funding (3 votes – Moderate Priority) 

 CDG Funding and Coordinating / Festivals (2 votes – Moderate / Low Priority) 
 

2. Develop, Maintain and Rebuild Safe, Clean, Diverse, Healthy, Neighborhoods, including 
Partnering with the School District. 

 Downstream Flood Mitigation (18 votes – Top Priority)   

 Replacement of One Block of Seal Coat on the East Side of Town (11 votes – Top 
Priority). 

 Greenview Connection (10 votes – High Priority)  

 Water Main Replacement on E. College from 4th to 5th Replacing a 4” Main with 8’ Main. 
(9 votes – High  Priority) 

 Cedar / Johnson County Road – Plan / Funding Strategy (11 votes – Top Priority) 

Preface 



3 | P a g e    
 

  

 Splash Pad Funding / Contribution (6 votes – Moderate Priority) 

 Greenview Curb and Gutter (5 votes – Moderate Priority) 

 Housing Trust Fund / Program (3 votes – Moderate / Low Priority) 

 Overlay One Alley (2 votes – Moderate / Low Priority) 
 

3. Develop inviting high profile visual impact project’s including gateways establishing 
destination, branding and other that reflect sound use of tax dollars. 

 Cedar / Johnson County Road – Plan / Funding Strategy (11 votes – Top Priority) 

 Parkside Sidewalk or Trail Project / Connecting Downtown to the Industrial Park (5 votes  
–  Moderate Priority) 

 Phase 5 Downtown Sidewalk Project (3 votes – Moderate / Low Priority)  
 

4. Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, progressive 
thinking and modernizing the organization. 

 Adding an Additional Full Time Employee to Public Works (10 votes – Top Priority) 

 Annexation Plan / Strategy (3 votes – Moderate / Low Priority) 

 Develop / Implement Long-Term Disability Benefit Program (3) 

 Develop / Implement Short-Term Disability Benefit Program(3) 
 

 

************** 

 

Passed and approved this 2nd day of December, 2019. 

 

 

ATTEST:       

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Preface 



4 | P a g e    
 

City Organizational Chart 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Preface 



5 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Preface 



6 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

 

City Council’s Stated Priorities (Goal Setting) 

 

City Organizational Chart 

 

City Administrator’s Proposed Budget Message 

 

Adoption of Budget and Certification of City Taxes (Form 16-142) 

 

FY 2020 

Notice of Public Hearing Budget Estimate 
 

FY 2020 

Departmental Revenues City of West Branch Approved Budget As of: January 31st, 

2020 

 

FY 2020 

Departmental Expenditures City of West Branch Approved Budget As of: January 

31st, 2020  

 

FY 2021 (City Administrator’s Recommended) 

Expenditures City of West Branch Expenditures by Activity (Unaudited) As of: January 

31st, 2020. 

 

Page 2 

Page 4 

Page 7 

Page 13 

Page 28 

Page 42 

Page 62 

Table of Contents 

Page 27 



7 | P a g e    
 

 

February 18, 2020 

Letter from the City Administrator 

 
Dear Citizens of West Branch: 
 
On behalf of the Mayor, City Council, and City Staff, I am pleased to present the Fiscal Year 

2020 – 2021 Budget for the City of West Branch. 

 

As the City Administrator, I would like to share with you some of my thoughts and beliefs for the 

future of this great community.  It is a testament to the leadership and fortitude of this historic 

community that it continues to move forward as one of the “Most Livable Communities in Iowa” 

as recognized by the Council for Community and Economic Research.  It is fair to say “We are on 

a Roll”.  In addition to completing several capital projects over the past year including the biggest 

single public investment in the city’s history… “Cubby Park”; we continue to move forward at a 

record’s pace with new housing starts.  For the fifth consecutive year we have  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       West Branch      4          7         8         22         +175% 

On top of a strong housing economy, we still enjoy a stable tourist industry being the home to 

the Herbert Hoover Presidential Library.  One of only 9 Presidential Libraries in the Nation, the 

library attracted 36,735 visitors to West Branch last year.  The National Park which surrounds 

the presidential library received 140,000 visitors last year.  For a small community of 

approximately 2,500 citizens, this is a unique amenity that creates opportunities for local option 

sales tax revenues for the city.  The recent support of the voters “Hotel / Motel Tax”, continues 

increased our new housing starts.  

Although all of our numbers are not 

in for 2019, based on building permit 

data we anticipate this trend will 

continue well into the next fiscal 

year.  This continued growth will also 

continue to bolster the city’s assessed 

values, ensuring city revenue streams 

needed to meet the new service 

demands of a growing community. 

Regional housing trends indicate 

home prices will continue to 

appreciate and home sales are 

anticipated to continue on a steady 

growth rate forecast for 2020 – 2021. 

(Forecast and Community Outlook) 



8 | P a g e    
 

to grow and develop new city revenue streams that support our economic development efforts.  

From an economic development perspective, it makes sense to invest in West Branch.  We are 

the fastest growing community in Cedar County, with direct I-80 access and international 

industry partners like:  

 U.S Ventures (a transportation energy and supply chain management company),  

 Procter & Gamble, 

 Altorfer Inc., 

 Plastic Products Company Inc. and, 

 Nordex (a global turbine manufacturer) 

 

Although, in the next two years one of our largest industrial partners Procter and Gamble (a 300 

job employer) will be moving its operations to West Virginia.  This will give any new or 

expanding industrial partner(s) an abundant labor force that will embrace a strong work ethic.  

When combined with our educational resources with neighboring University of Iowa and 

Kirkwood Community College, our recreational facilities, our cultural and historical amenities; a 

synergy is created that makes the West Branch industrial community one of the premier 

destinations for manufacturing distribution and corporate office facilities in the United States.  It 

is clear to me that our future is bright. 

 

The FY 2020 – 2021 General Fund Budget contains strategic investments in several key focus 

areas for the city and is structurally balanced to fund critical services to our community.  Thanks 

to residents of West Branch for making the choice to invest in our park system, this budget is the 

next step in moving forward into our next phase of providing the operational logistics for our 

new park amenity.  Opening a large new park comes with its own set of challenges, but this 

budget has taken measured tactical steps to enhance fiscal discipline and meet new operational 

needs.  This called for personnel enhancements in both Departments of Public Works and Parks.  

This was achieved without hindering our note-worthy high level of service or having to increase 

our tax-rate. 

In addition, to the City’s fiscal responsibility priorities, there are still a number of smart 

infrastructure investments happening in strategic points of our community.  This budget an 

investment in dealing with our long time flash flooding challenges in the downtown or central 

city area.  Flood mitigation will not only assist frequently effected downtown business and 

central neighborhoods.  It will also assist our first responders to avoid an estimated 6 – 12 inches 

of water from entering into the fire and police facility.  This is another capital investment that 

will not require an increase in taxes.  Despite the time delays and contractor challenges 

encountered on the Cubby Park project, it was able to be closed with positive cash in the project 

budget.  With creative financing, we were able to seek bond counsel approval to use a portion of 

these funds for improving flood protection for both Beranek and Wapsi Parks. 

This budget also continues investment in maintaining one of the highest public safety ratings in 

the State of Iowa.  Public Safety continues to be one of the highest priorities for the West Branch 

community.  The Fire Department continues to be one of the best maintained fire fleets in the 

(Budget Narrative) 



9 | P a g e    
 

region, and our budget continues to support these efforts.  In addition, this budget also 

recognized the outstanding work and contributions of our volunteer Fire Chief.  Since the City of 

West Branch has been growing, so has the demands on our Fire Chief.  In an attempt to avoid the 

expense of hiring a full-time Fire Chief, and to mitigate the effects that greater calls service has 

had on his ability to also run his local business. The city has agreed to provide the standard 

employee health care benefits for the Fire Chief.  With regard to the Police Department, 

handsome investments were made in the area of upgrading the department’s body camera 

system.  Our upgraded system will not only enhance officer safety but will bring an 

unprecedented level of transparency for the department.  It will allow us to have more angles as 

images will stream from multiple devices to a centralized recording depository.   

Consistent with the City Council’s goal-setting and policy direction, West Branch continues to 

find ways to increase the safety of our community.  The West Branch Schools and City 

partnership to implement a resource police officer in the elementary school has received raving 

reviews.  This year’s budget maximizes this relationship and builds to make the school resource 

officer a full-time officer to have duties dedicated to school resources and normal policing.  This 

creative and collaborative use of resources has created a win/win for the City, the School 

District, and the citizens.  Using well tested policing and fire science our Police and Fire 

Departments have found low cost methods to improve what are already highly rated services as 

attested by our ISO and safety ratings.     

As we continue to be a local government leader in continuous improvement of government 

services, we believe that at its basic levels government should always be “Open” to the 

public, “Agile” enough to respond to public demand; and “Purposeful” to ensure that ends 

make sense for the public good.    

 

 

In the words of President Herbert Hoover: 

(West Branch Native Son) 

 

“Our job is to find common ground, not to 

widen differences.” 

 

 

 

Building on common ground with an “open, agile, and purposeful” government relies on a 

capable staff in order to achieve success.  It is commonly understood, that strategic investments 

in employees, will attract and keep the best candidates.  Additionally, it will maintain and grow 

our continuous improvement culture.  For these reasons, this budget makes notable 

improvements in our employee benefits package.  For the first time the city will include: Short-

Term, Long-Term, and an Employee Assistance Program in its employee benefits package.  This 

is a major step in remaining competitive with the market place.  We have also made our cost of 

 

https://westbranchiowa.org/visit-us/herbert-hoover/


10 | P a g e    
 

living adjustment based on Federal Labor Bureau statistics, which recommended a 1.6% 

adjustment to salaries and wages.  Like other growing cities striving to keep up with the demands 

of expanding infrastructure managing the normal lag of collecting the new revenues of new 

residents.  This has created an environment where employees are being asked to wear multiple 

hats and burdening multiple duties that may not easily be reflected in benchmark comparisons 

with the market place.  Although we constantly check to ensure we remain competitive with our 

wages and benefits, we are also cognizant that the city needs to undergo classification study; 

thus, allowing for clearer strategies for promotions, job expectations, and merit bonuses.   

 

(Public Support) 

We try to focus our tax rate policies on making wise public investment and promoting fairness 

across the board.  It takes public trust for a local government to create a tax strategy that offers 

fiscal certainty.  I believe it’s not high taxes that upset citizens, its taxes that are not clearly 

explained or taxes that are not held accountable for clear outcomes.  I would continue to argue 

that this approach is its own form of economic development.  Businesses have to make long-term 

judgment and forecasting, they need to know what the tax rate will be five years from now, and 

they need confidence that the city will be able to fund the infrastructure and services it needs; 

otherwise, their cost of doing business goes up and their odds of long-term success goes down.  

There are two recent ballot measures that have allowed the city to implement this approach.  The 

Hotel / Motel Tax, and the Capital Improvement Levy.  Both measures were approved by the 

voters and helps to stabilize potential budget influences that could affect the tax rate.  The Hotel 

/ Motel Tax is a locally imposed lodging tax that is collected by the State of Iowa.  For the City 

of West Branch, this is a new revenue stream that adds to the city’s fund balance health in the 

amount of $20,000; approximately that equates 0.12 cents in taxes that would have to be added 

to the existing tax rate to raise the equivalent amount of revenue. 

The Capital Improvement Levy is first step helping the city move toward a disciplined Capital 

Improvement Strategy.  This levy does not have to be used or instituted in any given year.  It is 

intended to allow the City to keep the debt obligation portion of the tax rate steady.  Normally 

when cities pay off their debts, their tax rate normally goes down.  However, infrastructure needs 

don’t end, and cities find themselves having to issue more debt in the form of bonds to pay for 

new projects.  Unfortunately, this is an expensive way of paying for infrastructure.  General 

obligation bonds typically come with bond attorney fees, state-mandated financial advisor fees, 

and finance charges.  In “Our Plan” the money previously paid in debt service would now go into 

a Capital Improvement Fund.  This fund would be used like a savings account that could pay for 

things like sidewalks, road repairs or downtown improvements.  This way we avoid the typical 

expenses, and instead we plan, approve, and use funds from our own reserve fund.   

The last area of public support has been in the area of wastewater.  The city sewer utility will be 

required to implement new wastewater compliance regulations which have affected our rate 

structure.  The bad news is it has increased $2.50 this year and it is intended to go up an 

additional $5.00 over the next two years.  The good news is the city is aggressively searching for 

(less expensive) alternative methods of treating wastewater.  Currently, we found a method that 

shows promise.  Limited trials have exceeded state requirements.  However, we still have to go 



11 | P a g e    
 

through the process of documenting data and getting a formal pilot project sanctioned by the 

Iowa Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  We have been given 49 months to pre-design, 

design and construct a State Mandated Wastewater process.  We are now asking the state to 

suspend these deadlines to allow this promising technology opportunity to prove what we have 

seen to have worked.  The public has been very supportive as we go through this process, and 

will need continued support as we work to convince the state of the merits of this new process. 

(Tax Rate Comparison) 

Our recommended and proposed Total Property Levy remains 13.09428; it should also be noted 

that we were able to increase personnel in both the departments of Public Works and Police.  We 

were also able to improve the employee benefits package to include short-term and long-term 

disability coverage.  This tax rate also extends health benefits for our volunteer Fire Chief.  

Additionally, the same tax rates allow us to take on bold new infrastructure improvements such 

as Flood Mitigating Creek Widening and Utility Relocation for I-80 expansion.  We also will be 

conducting smaller neighborhood infrastructure improvements, and making additional 

investments in our new “Cubby Park”.  Thanks to our growth, all of this will be done without 

raising taxes.  This still ranks West Branch among the lowest tax rates in communities our size.  

See Iowa cities of 2,100 – 2,500 population below: 

 

Postville (15.47553)  Audubon (21.78597)   Belle Plaine (13.29749) 

Hudson (11.61447)  La Porte City (14.87799) Madrid (17.91532) 

Jesup (14.45844)     Lamoni (17.15321)  Cascade (8.83397) 

West Union (14.95218)  Ida Grove (12.88172)  Marengo (13.94787) 

Bellevue (12.35125)  FairFax (8.10000)  Rock Rapids (17.00253) 

Mitchellville (13.83465)  Sac City (16.69054)  Hawarden (14.46573) 

Hull (13.25069)   Toledo (16.39443)  Kalona (11.45461)  

Lake Mills (13.56363)  Belmond (17.09801)  West Liberty (17.78803) 

Wilton (14.24170)   Durant (14.77977) 

Highlighted cities are communities that are currently below West Branch’s current 

13.09428.  Please keep in mind that these rates do not reflect any proposed rate increases 

these communities may be considering or imposing for next year’s FY 20-21 budget.   

(Closing Remarks) 

The budget and finance division has introduced a new methodology and approach to preparing 

this year’s budget.  It has placed a greater emphasis on locking down unit cost, budget planning, 

measuring expenses, and examining revenues based on related staffing and/or program activities.  

One of the key elements in the operations budget is the estimated workload (the labor-hours per 

output).  Such units of measurement and staffing ratios are important for organizations that are 

growing (in growing communities).  The practice of funding staffing and activities out of funding 



12 | P a g e    
 

centers within the budget “just because funding is there” may solve short term funding 

challenges, but over time the organization loses an understanding of its bottom-line.  We have 

begun the process of reversing this budget culture.  It may appear that some department budgets 

have grown, but in reality, they are just more reflective of “who they really are” with realistic 

service unit cost. 

Last year the City Council had many discussions regarding establishing a 3 month operating 

reserve?  After much discussion, this was delayed due to the perception that the issue of cash 

flow could come up during the fiscal year.  Ultimately, the question is should the city create the 

expectation of encumbered funds when debt obligations and/or the timing of paying said 

obligations may require these funds.  The policy debate is not over, but this year the council has 

decided to establish vehicle and equipment reserves.  This is another step to becoming more 

fiscally disciplined and transparent.  If indeed cash flow does become an issue?  City Council 

will have an obligation to have a public dialogue about why reserve funds are needed were used.   

From a policy-making stand point, the strength of this budget comes from the continued financial 

discipline set into motion by aforementioned fiscal strategies/philosophies.  If we hold ourselves 

accountable and adopt policies that task fund categories to be more sustainable or self-sufficient 

and, if we can seek ways to diversify our revenue streams and have our cost reflected in service 

fees; we will emerge as a smart growth community.  With a city administration philosophy that 

adopts a continuous improvement business model, our aim is to combine the goals, visions, and 

efforts of our Mayor, City Council, City Staff, Citizens, and Community Volunteers.  Together 

we are turning vision into reality. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Redmond Jones II 

City of West Branch 

City Administrator 

Adoption of Budget and Certification of City Taxes (Form 16-142) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

https://westbranchiowa.org/city-of-west-branch/mayor-city-council/
https://westbranchiowa.org/city-of-west-branch/departments-2/
https://westbranchiowa.org/community/


13 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



14 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



15 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 | P a g e    
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



17 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



18 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



19 | P a g e    
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20 | P a g e    
 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



21 | P a g e    
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



22 | P a g e    
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



23 | P a g e    
 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 | P a g e    
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



25 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



26 | P a g e    
 

 



27 | P a g e    
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



28 | P a g e    
 

FY 2020 

Departmental Revenues City of West Branch Approved Budget As of: January 31st, 2020 

 

 



29 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 



30 | P a g e    
 

 



31 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



32 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



33 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



34 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



35 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



36 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



37 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



38 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 



39 | P a g e    
 

 
 



40 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



41 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



42 | P a g e    
 

FY 2020 

Departmental Expenditures City of West Branch Approved Budget As of: January 31st, 2020  

 

 
 

 

 



43 | P a g e    
 

 



44 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 



45 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



46 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



47 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 



48 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



49 | P a g e    
 

 
 



50 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



51 | P a g e    
 

 



52 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 



53 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



54 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



55 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



56 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



57 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 



58 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 



59 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 



60 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



61 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



62 | P a g e    
 

FY 2021 (City Administrator’s Recommended) 

Expenditures City of West Branch Expenditures by Activity (Unaudited) As of: January 31st, 

2020. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



63 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



64 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



65 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



66 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



67 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



68 | P a g e    
 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



69 | P a g e    
 

  
 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



70 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



71 | P a g e    
 

 
 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



72 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



73 | P a g e    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fiscal Year 

2020 - 2021 



74 | P a g e    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Documents end 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1877 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S RECOMMENDED 

BUDGET AND ORDERING A NOTICE OF HEARING FOR MARCH 2, 2020 TO 

ADOPT THE FY 2020-2021 BUDGET. 

 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA: 

 

The proposed fiscal year 2020-2021 annual budget as set forth in the budget summary 

and certification of taxes and in the detailed budget in support thereof showing revenue 

estimates and appropriation expenditures and allocations to programs for said fiscal 

year is accepted and a public hearing is set for March 2, 2029. 

 

Passed and approved the 18th day of February 2020. 

 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                        Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: RESOLUTION 1876 – Approve Submitting the Iowa Department of 

Transportation Agreement / Resolution Sign Replacement Program 

Application for Cities & Counties (Grant).  

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director and Nevin Tucker, Wastewater 

                         Operator / Street Maintenance.       

DATE:  February 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
In recent years Public Works has been replacing large amounts of outdated and dysfunctional 

signage across the community. There was a large amount of signage that was either located 

incorrectly, had lost its reflectivity or had damaged posts. This has been a major undertaking in 

man power but also to budget as signs/sign materials are fairly expensive. The IDOT offers up 

to $5,000 for City grants and payment is made through reimbursements to the City upon 

installation of the signage. The IDOT requires a resolution from the City to accompany the grant 

application. We are requesting Council approval to apply for the grant. Aside from signing the 

resolution, all of the work for the grant has already been completed and is ready to be sent in 

upon receipt of a signed resolution. Thanks to Nevin for the work he put in to getting all of the 

materials ready for this application. It should amount to just under $4,000 in mostly stop signs 

upon completion and will account for 45 new sign installations on the east side of town.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1876 – Move to Action   
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION 1876 

 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AGREEMENT / RESOLUTION 

Sign Replacement Program for Cities & Counties 
(SRPFCC) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ver 02.22.19 

1876 

West Branch 

West Branch 

West Branch 

West Branch 

West Branch 

West Branch 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20 

West Branch 

Ver 02.22.19 

Attest:  Redmond Jones II   Roger Laughlin 

City Administrator / Clerk   Mayor 


	Council packet 2-18-2020 #2.pdf
	Council packet 2-18-2020
	Claims pd 02-18-20
	Rev Jan 2020
	Council rpt 2-18-2020

	Claims pd 02-13-20




